
 

 

WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
REGULAR MEETING 
September 23, 2015 

 
A Regular Meeting of the Warren Zoning Board of Appeals was called on Wednesday, 
September 23, 2015 at 7:30 p.m. in the Warren Community Center Auditorium, 5460 
Arden Avenue, Warren, Michigan 48092. 
 
Members of the Board present: 
Steve Watripont, Chairman 
Judy Furgal, Vice-Chairwoman 
Roman Nestorowicz, Secretary 
Ann Pauta  
Charles Anglin 
Rick Tabbi III 
 

Members of the Board absent: 
Sherry Brasza 
Henry Brasza 
 
Also present: 
Roxanne Canestrelli, City Attorney 
Lynn Martin, Chief Zoning Inspector 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

Chairman Watripont called the meeting to order at 7:34 p.m. 
 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

3. ROLL CALL 
 

Chairman Watripont stated he was informed that Board Member Descamps has sent a 
letter of resignation and that Board Members Henry and Sherry Brasza are on a family 
trip.  Is there a motion to excuse Mr. and Mrs. Brasza? 
 

Motion: 
Board Member Furgal made the motion to excuse the absence of Board Member 
H. Brasza and Board Member S. Brasza, due to a family trip, Supported by 
Board Member Pauta. 
 
Voice Vote: 
A voice vote was taken on the motion. The motion carried (6-0) 
 

Chairman Watripont stated the Board does have two (2) new members today, Board 
Member Tabbi and Board Member Anglin and he thanks them. 
 
 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

MINUTES OF SEPTEMBER 23, 2015 

Page 2 

 

 

 
 

4. ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 
 

Secretary Nestorowicz stated the Board did receive two (2) requests for reschedules 
that came to the Board; one is in regards to item number 7, at 23328 Sherwood, as they 
were asking to be rescheduled to the October 14, 2015 meeting. 
 
Chairman Watripont stated okay item number 7. 
 
Secretary Nestorowicz stated would they motion them together? 
 
Chairman Watripont stated no, they are going to have different dates.  He asked if there 
was a motion to… 

 
Motion: 
Board Member Furgal made the motion to Reschedule public hearing item 7, Auto 
Repair Shop, Jeffery Brodsky to October 14, Supported by Board Member Pauta. 

 
Chairman Watripont stated he has a motion by Board Member Furgal and Support by 
Board Member Pauta, to reschedule item number 7; to October 14th. 
 

Voice Vote: 
A voice vote was taken on the motion. The motion carried (6-0) 

 
Chairman Watripont stated that if anyone was present for item number 7, 23328 Sher-
wood, Auto Repair Shop, Jeffrey Brodsky; it will not be reposted and it is rescheduled 
for October 14, 2015, same place and time.  He asked for the second item. 
 
Secretary Nestorowicz stated the second item, which was originally item number 11, on 
the Agenda for Shiloh Industries, at 27101 Groesbeck Highway; they indicated they 
needed to return to the Planning Commission, so therefore, they would like to be re-
scheduled to a date after the Planning Commission, so they would like to make a 
motion to propose moving them to the November 18th, meeting. 
 
Chairman Watripont stated is there a motion? 
 

Motion: 
Board Member Furgal made the motion to reschedule public hearing item 11, 
Applicant: Shiloh Industries, Inc., to November 18, 2015; Supported by Board 
Member Anglin. 

 
Chairman Watripont stated he has a motion by Board Member Furgal and Support by 
Board Member Anglin, to reschedule item number 11; to November 18, 2015.  He 
called for voice vote. 
 

Voice Vote: 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

MINUTES OF SEPTEMBER 23, 2015 

Page 3 

 

 

A voice vote was taken on the motion. The motion carried (6-0) 
 
 
Chairman Watripont stated if anyone present for item number 11, Shiloh Industries, Inc / 
J.P. Tillies, LLC, 27101 Groesbeck Highway, has been Rescheduled to November 18, 
and it will not be reposted; this is the notice. Now, continuing to adoption of the agenda. 
 

Motion: 
Secretary Nestorowicz made the motion to Adopt the Agenda as Amended, Sup-
ported by Board Member Furgal. 

 
Voice Vote: 
A voice vote was taken on the motion. The motion carried (6-0) 

 
 

5. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF the Regular Meeting of September 9, 2015. 
 

Motion: 
Secretary Nestorowicz made the motion to move the Approval of the Minutes to 
October 14, 2015, due to having only three (3) of the existing Board Members 
were present at that meeting, to give a chance for Mr. and Mrs. Brasza to return 
to review it.  
 
Chairman Watripont stated he has a motion by Secretary Nestorowicz and the 
only other Member who was present for that was Board Member Furgal. 
 
Board Member Furgal stated she Supports the motion. 
 
Chairman Watripont stated he has a motion by Secretary Nestorowicz and Sup-
ported by Board Member Furgal to reschedule the Approval of the Minutes of 
the Regular Meeting of September 9, 2015, to the next meeting of October 14th. 
 
Voice Vote: 
A voice vote was taken on the motion. The motion carried (6-0). 

 
 

6. PUBLIC HEARING    APPLICANT: 23400 Dequindre LLC/ 
  The Transmission Shop 

      (Rescheduled from 8/26/15) 
REPRESENTATIVE:   Mr. Allen Saroki 
COMMON DESCRIPTION:  23400-23402 Dequindre 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION:   13-30-306-003 
ZONE:     M-2 
 
VARIANCES REQUESTED: Permission to: 
Retain signage as follows: 
One the west elevation 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

MINUTES OF SEPTEMBER 23, 2015 

Page 4 

 

 

1. One (1) painted sign 100” x 124” = 86.11 sq. ft. 
2. One (1) painted sign 72” x 174” = 87 sq. ft. 
3. One (1) painted sign 98” x 128” = 87.11 sq. ft. 
Total 260.22 on west elevation. 
On the south elevation 
4. One (1) painted sign 114” x 163” = 129 sq. ft. 
5. One (1) painted sign 30” x 56” = 11.67 sq. ft. 
6. One (1) painted sign 42” x 116” = 33.83 sq. ft. 
7. One (1) painted sign 20” x 48” = 6.67 sq. ft.  
Total 354.28 sq. ft. on the south elevation. 
ORDINANCES and REQUIREMENTS: 
Section 4A.35 (c): Total wall signage of a size not to exceed forty (40) sw. ft. shall be 
allowed for each business in C-1, C-2, C-3 M-1 and M-2. 
 
Chairman Watripont asked the individual at the podium to state his name and address 
for the record. 
 
Alan Saroki, 23400 Dequindre Road, Warren, Michigan, appeared before the Board. 
 
Chairman Watripont asked the reason for the petition. 
 
Alan Saroki stated the petition is to allow the current signage that is on the building to 
remain.  The operator has been in business and operating at this location for twenty 
(20) years; they are looking to repaint the outside of the building, which is his portion.  
He understands the zoning or the maximum allowed without a variance is 40 feet and 
they are close to a little over 600 feet.  The signage is about to be repainted; the build-
ing is going to be repainted on that side and it will look very presentable and very nice.  
He thinks it is in the best interest of his client, the operator, who has spent a lot of 
money advertising and struggling in business and it is in the interest of the community 
here to give him adequate signage, so that he could operate his business. 
 
Chairman Watripont stated this is a public hearing, anyone wishing to speak on this 
matter to approach the podium.  Hearing and seeing none, he turned the matter over to 
the Board.   Chairman Watripont stated he wanted to make a statement to all of the 
petitioners.   The Board has only six (6) members on the Board tonight, so if they would 
like to have their item rescheduled, they could reschedule it to the November meeting, if 
they choose to, to inform the Board when they come up.  He apologized to Mr. Saroki 
and stated that everyone needs five (5) affirmative votes, there is one (1) Use Variance 
that is item number 13; which that will need all six (6) votes in favor, so, everyone will 
need five (5) votes, otherwise, their item will be denied.  Everyone has the option to 
reschedule. 
 
Board Member Furgal stated if she recalls correctly, the reason why the Applicant came 
back was because they asked him to come up with a better plan and he is asking for the 
same thing again? 
 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

MINUTES OF SEPTEMBER 23, 2015 

Page 5 

 

 

Alan Saroki stated no, that was not the reason he was asked to come back. The reason 
he was asked to come back was because someone had miscalculated on the notice of 
the public hearing; on that basis. 
 
Board Member Furgal stated okay that was right.  But still, the discussion was regarding 
the excessive amount of signage; if they are only supposed to have 40 square feet, and 
he wants 600 sq. ft., there needs to be some kind of compromise; does he think so? 
 
Alan Saroki stated that was up to the Board, they are ready to compromise. 
 
Board Member Furgal stated well he needs to make a suggestion; the Board is not 
going to tell him what to do. 
 
Alan Saroki stated well what he has done, which cuts them down substantially is, if on 
the front, the west elevation, they take off one of the transmission shop signs, which is 
item number 1, and then on the south elevation, they delete items number 5 and 6 and 
still leave in the customer sign, which is a very small item, so just keep 4, and 7, and 
that would be about 320 sq. ft. verses the 600 sq. ft. and it would give his client the 
signage that he needs to operate his business and also, in the measurement, there is a 
lot of wasted space, because he was required to square everything off regarding the 
signage and so, if they could have that, they would be able to have sufficient signage for 
the tenant’s use. 
 
Board Member Furgal stated okay, that was better. She thanked Mr. Saroki. 
 
Chairman Watripont stated that was along the lines he was thinking of, so. 
 
Board Member Pauta stated of the signs that he currently has, how many have permits? 
 
Alan Saroki asked how many have permits. 
 
Board Member Pauta affirmed. 
 
Alan Saroki stated this was painted 20 years ago; he has no idea how many of these 
have permits.  All he knows is once they repaint them; they are going to have to get 
permits, so. 
 
Board Member Pauta stated absolutely. 
 
Board Member Anglin asked the Applicant if he could repeat the ones that he wanted to 
delete for him once more time. 
 
Alan Saroki stated delete items number 1, 5 and 6. 
 
Board Member Furgal asked if anyone else has any questions. 
 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

MINUTES OF SEPTEMBER 23, 2015 

Page 6 

 

 

Chairman Watripont stated he believes when Mr. Saroki was before the Board last time, 
he believes the Board asked him to take the barb wire down and he gave that up; was 
that correct? 
 
Alan Saroki stated yes. 
 
Chairman Watripont stated okay, he does not have that variance in his packet right now, 
so he wanted to make sure.  Yes, he is then done and called on Board Member Furgal. 
 

Motion: 
Board Member Furgal made the motion to approve the petitioner’s request to: 
2. One (1) painted sign 72” x 174” = 87 sq. ft. 
3. One (1) painted sign 98” x 128” = 87.11 sq. ft. 

Total 174.11 .22 on west elevation. 
On the south elevation 
4. One (1) painted sign 114” x 163” = 129 sq. ft. 
7. One (1) painted sign 20” x 48” = 6.67 sq. ft. 

Total 135.67 sq. ft. on south elevation. 
 
Reason being: Due to Lack of Identification and Not a Detriment to the Area. 
 
Secretary Nestorowicz Supported the motion. 
 
Chairman Watripont stated there is a motion by Board Member Furgal, Supported 
by Secretary Nestorowicz, granting items number 2, 3, 4 and 7.  The Petitioner 
voluntarily removed items 1, 5, and 6.  Reason being: Lack of Identification and 
Not a Detriment to the Area.  He asked for Roll Call. 
 
Roll Call: 
A roll call was taken on the motion to approve and the motion carried (5-1). 

 

Board Member Furgal   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 

Secretary Nestorowicz   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 

Board Member Pauta   No, she thinks it is still too much signage. 

Board Member Anglin   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 

Board Member Tabbi   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 

Chairman Watripont   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 
 

The Petitioner’s request has been GRANTED, with the Amendments to items 1, 5, and 
6 be removed from the request and only granting: Items 2, 3, 4, and 7 of the initial 
request. 
 
 

7. PUBLIC HEARING    APPLICANT: Auto Repair Shop, 
                  Jeffrey Brodsky (owner)  
      (Rescheduled from 8/26/15) 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

MINUTES OF SEPTEMBER 23, 2015 

Page 7 

 

 

REPRESENTATIVE:   Mr. Kerm Billette PCP 
COMMON DESCRIPTION:  23328 Sherwood 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION:   13-28-452-014 
ZONE:     M-2 & C-3 
 
VARIANCES REQUESTED: Permission to: 
1. Operate an auto repair facility adjacent to residential to the east, as per the plan. 
2. Waive the required masonry wall along the north east property line (vacated alley). 
3. Waive 21 required off street parking spaces. 
4. Allow 17 repair vehicles in lot. 
ORDINANCES and REQUIREMENTS: 
Section 14.01 Paragraph (j): Uses permitted. Automobile repair shops, including body 
and fender business, provided that such uses are conducted entirely within an enclosed 
building, and provided further that such establishments are located at least two hun-
dred (200) feet from any residential district or are operated on the premises of and in 
conjunction with an automobile dealership in a building with appropriate filtering system 
to prevent emission of paint odors and with a masonry wall facing any such residen-
tial district, which shall have sound retarding insulation, shall have no doors other 
than any door required by law as a fire exit, and shall have no windows but may 
have glass block areas to transmit light.  
Section 4.32 (h) (20): Parking required for service shops: one (1) parking space for 
each five hundred (500) square feet of floor area. 
Section 4.32 (h) (23): Parking for warehouse: 100% of the floor area required in off 
street parking. 
 
This matter was rescheduled to October 14, 2015, pursuant to Applicant’s written 
request. 
 
 

8. PUBLIC HEARING    APPLICANT: Richard & Patricia Osantowski 
REPRESENTATIVE:   Same as above. 
COMMON DESCRIPTION:  31917 Regal 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION:   13-01-401-013 

ZONE:     R-1-C 
 
VARIANCES REQUESTED: Permission to: 
Replace an existing wood fence with a new wood fence 5’ 15/16” in height along the 
Masonic property line as per the plan, without the ten (10) foot setback at driveway. 
Starting at the north east corner of the house going 42.5’ toward Masonic then 107.04 
feet along the Masonic property line. Total 149.54 linear feet.  
ORDINANCES and REQUIREMENTS: 
Section 4D.33 (b): Corner lot privacy fences: A privacy fence is permitted on corner lots 
provided that if the fence abuts any driveway, including driveways on adjacent property, 
the fence shall be set back a minimum of ten (10) feet from the intersection of the 
property line and the driveway providing a clear vision zone area. The portion of the 
fence set back a minimum of ten (10) feet, may be angled away from the driveway or 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

MINUTES OF SEPTEMBER 23, 2015 

Page 8 

 

 

installed perpendicular to the driveway. The clear vision zone area is required to provide 
for the unobstructed vision of a driver exiting the driveway. 
 
Chairman Watripont asked the individuals at the podium to state their name and ad-
dress for the record. 
 
Patricia Osantowski, 31917 Regal Drive, Warren, Michigan appeared before the Board 
and introduced her husband Mr. Richard Osantowski. 
 
Chairman Watripont asked the reason for the petition. 
 
Patricia Osantowski stated to replace the existing fence that they have without the ten 
(10) foot setback at the driveway.  
 
Chairman Watripont asked for the hardship. 
 
Richard Osantowski stated they have no driveway if they were to take in ten (10) feet; 
his driveway is twenty-seven (27) feet; he could never get a car off the street in the 
winter time and he has four (4) cars, him and his family. 
 
Patricia Osantowski stated they rarely use this driveway except for the winter time, they 
open the gates on Sunday nights to take out the trash, they usually park all of their cars 
in the front of their home, which the front of their house is on the Regal Drive.  From the 
corner of Regal to their driveway, which abuts up next to Miller Park, there is enough 
room for three (3) driveways if they were to be coming from… 
 
Richard Osantowski stated on the other side of the street. 
 
Patricia Osantowski stated exactly.  They have no one in the back of them; they have a 
petition with them with all of their neighbors, their surrounding neighbors, which have 
agreed to have the existing fence replaced as is.  They have an in ground pool, they 
need the privacy because Masonic and Regal; Masonic could be busy during the middle 
of the day.  Like she said, they do not use their garage for their vehicles, it is basically 
his man cave (referring to her husband) and like her husband had stated, if they have 
that setback, she would have to remove trees, they would lose part of their yard, they 
would not be able to fit the cars in their yard, and so, being on the corner, they would 
like to replace it with a really nice wooden fence; not a cyclone fence, and they are 
asking the Board’s permission to do so. 
 
Richard Osantowski stated and not a cheap Home Depot fence either. 
 
Patricia Osantowski stated no. 
 
Chairman Watripont stated this is a public hearing, anyone wishing to speak on this 
item.  Hearing and seeing none, he turned the matter over to the Board. 
 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

MINUTES OF SEPTEMBER 23, 2015 

Page 9 

 

 

Secretary Nestorowicz stated he understands the petitioner’s reasons for why they say 
they could not do the setback by the driveway, it is just the Board has the ordinance that 
says there should be a ten (10) foot cut there for safety and he does not believe for the 
safety issue they could start making an allowance for one (1) house because then the 
next family will come and if they are next, they set a precedence.  He really could not 
support this without a setback there. 
 
Board Member Furgal stated she agrees with Secretary Nestorowicz. 
 
Chairman Watripont stated there are six (6) members and two (2) members have 
already placed their concerns; he has concerns also; he believes there is safety issue 
there. 
 
Patricia Osantowski asked if the Board has any documentation of anybody being run-
over by any driveway. 
 
Lynn Martin, Chief Zoning Inspector stated her suggestion is to have it rescheduled until 
they have more people on the Board. 
 
Patricia Osantowski stated this was the second time. 
 
Lynn Martin, Chief Zoning Inspector stated she knows. 
 
Richard Osantowski stated she knows. 
 
Lynn Martin, Chief Zoning Inspector stated they need five (5) votes, so far they have 
four (4) possible, so they want to reschedule till they have more people; they would 
have a better chance. 
 
Patricia Osantowski stated okay, then they probably would not get it done before winter, 
correct?  
 
Lynn Martin, Chief Zoning Inspector stated they just need to ask them. 
 
Patricia Osantowski asked the Board if they could reschedule. 
 
Chairman Watripont stated they have heard the public hearing already and it has been 
turned over to the Board at this time, so, unless a Board Member requests it. 
 

Motion: 
Board Member Anglin made the motion to reschedule this item for the next pos-
sible meeting to provide the Applicants the opportunity to be reheard before a full 
Board. 
 
Chairman Watripont stated he has a motion to reschedule for November 18, 
2015, was there a support? 
 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

MINUTES OF SEPTEMBER 23, 2015 

Page 10 

 

 

Board Member Furgal stated she would Support the motion. 
Voice Vote: 
A voice vote was taken on the motion. The motion carried (5-1)  
Board Member Pauta voted nay. 
 

Chairman Watripont stated it has been rescheduled for November 18, 2015. 
 
Patricia Osantowski asked if they would be receiving anything. 
 
Chairman Watripont stated they will not receive anything, this is their notice, and any-
one that wants to comment on this, that is the notice right now, is that it would be No-
vember 18, 2015.  For those out in the audience, if they wish to have it rescheduled, to 
please do so as soon as they come up to the podium, rather than go through the public 
hearing, so they would go forward at that point in time. 
 
This matter was rescheduled to November 18, 2015. 
 
 

9. PUBLIC HEARING    APPLICANT: Ms. Maryann Carbary 
REPRESENTATIVE:   Same as above. 
COMMON DESCRIPTION:  22511 Audrey 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION:   13-32-202-007 
ZONE:     R-1-C 
 
VARIANCES REQUESTED: Permission to: 
Install an awning over the existing front porch (6’ x 10’ = 60 sq. ft.) to no less than 
twenty (20) feet of the front sidewalk and nineteen (19) feet of the property line as per 
the plans. 
ORDINANCES and REQUIREMENTS: 
Section 7.05: Each lot in R-1-C Districts shall have a front yard of not less than twenty-
five (25) feet wide. 
 
Chairman Watripont asked the individuals at the podium to state their names and 
address for the record. 
 
Maryann Carbary, 22511 Audrey, in Warren, Michigan, appeared before the Board with 
Mr. Gary Carbary. 
 
Chairman Watripont asked the reason for their petition. 
 
Maryann Carbary stated they are trying to put an awning cover over their porch and she 
tried to get a permit and it was denied.  She is not 26 feet from the sidewalk.  She has 
pictures of several homes on her same block that have full-blown porches and she is 
just trying to put a little cover over her porch.  She is not going out, she is going up. 
 
Gary Carbary stated they are just trying to put an awning over their existing porch, 
which a lot of their neighbors have and they are being told they are too close to the 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

MINUTES OF SEPTEMBER 23, 2015 

Page 11 

 

 

sidewalk; well they already have an existing porch there that has been there, they just 
want an awning to cover over it.  They have pictures of similar houses on their street if 
the Board would like to see those.  
 
Chairman Watripont stated those are not before the Board and if they want to make a 
record with the City to go ahead and let them have the addresses and so forth.  He 
stated this is a public hearing, anyone wishing to speak on this matter; hearing and 
seeing none, he turned the matter over to the Board. 
 
Board Member Furgal stated the houses on Audrey were built quite a long time ago, 
and probably the setbacks have changed since then. 
 

Motion: 
Board Member Furgal made the motion to approve the petitioner’s request to: 
Install an awning over the existing front porch (6’ x 10’ = 60 sq. ft.) to no less than 
twenty (20) feet of the front sidewalk and nineteen (19) feet of the property line 
as per the plans. 
 
Reason being: Due to Size and Shape of the Lot, Needs Approval of the Board, 
and Not a Detriment to the Area. 
 
Secretary Nestorowicz supported the motion. 
 
Chairman Watripont stated there is a motion by Board Member Furgal, Supported 
by Secretary Nestorowicz, due to Size and Shape of the Lot and Not a Detriment 
to the Area.  He asked for Roll Call. 
 
Roll Call: 
A roll call was taken on the motion to approve and the motion carried (5-1). 

 

Board Member Furgal   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 

Secretary Nestorowicz   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 

Board Member Pauta   No, it is more than double the size of what 

      the ordinance is. 

Board Member Anglin   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 

Board Member Tabbi   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 

Chairman Watripont   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 
 
The Petitioner’s request has been GRANTED as written. 

 
 

10. PUBLIC HEARING    APPLICANT: Novo Motor Acoustical Systems 
REPRESENTATIVE:   Metro Detroit Signs/Mr. Kevin Deters 
COMMON DESCRIPTION:  23031 Sherwood 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION:   13-28-300-017 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

MINUTES OF SEPTEMBER 23, 2015 

Page 12 

 

 

ZONE:     M-4 
 
VARIANCES REQUESTED:  Permission to: 
Install a wall sign on the south elevation 2’ x 16’ = 32 sq. ft. in addition to two wall signs 
at 70 sq. ft. each. 
Total of 172 sq. ft. of wall signage. 
ORDINANCES and REQUIREMENTS: 
Section 4A.36 (c): Wall signs allowed in M-4: Total wall signage of a size not to 
exceed one hundred fifty (150) sq. ft. shall be allowed for each building in industrial 
districts. 
 
Chairman Watripont asked the individuals at the podium to state their names and 
addresses for the record. 
 
Deborah McCloud, 23031 Sherwood Avenue, in Warren, Michigan, appeared before the 
Board. 
 
Paul Deters, Metro Detroit Signs, 23544 Hoover Road, appeared before the Board. 
 
Chairman Watripont asked the reason for the petition. 
 
Paul Deters stated they are before the Board this evening to ask for their consideration 
to allow Novo to keep an existing sign on the south side of their building that serves as 
a notice to truck traffic that, that particular part of the building is not where their shipping 
and receiving facility is located, as the Board could see, he believes there is an over-
head plan in their packets that was included in this; a lot of trucks come in there, it is a 
very large facility, there are bays on the north side of the building; many of the people 
that would be coming would assume that those bays on the south side of the building 
are for shipping and receiving and back in there by mistake.  The sign there is really just 
directional in nature to alert truck traffic to the fact that they have to go around the other 
side of the building to complete their shipping and receiving operations. 
 
Chairman Watripont stated this is a public hearing, anyone wishing to speak on this 
matter.  Hearing and seeing none, he turned the matter over to the Board.  
 
Secretary Nestorowicz stated when they drive by the building based on the size and 
shape of the building, it is a huge building, addition of that sign that they have on the 
south elevation of that additional footage that they are asking for, for 32 sq. ft. is not that 
much for the overall building, so he would have no issue with that at all.  If there is no 
other discussion, he would like to make a motion. 
 

Motion: 
Secretary Nestorowicz made the motion to approve the petitioner’s request to: 
Install a wall sign on the south elevation 2’ x 16’ = 32 sq. ft. in addition to two wall 
signs at 70 sq. ft. each. 
Total of 172 sq. ft. of wall signage. 
 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

MINUTES OF SEPTEMBER 23, 2015 

Page 13 

 

 

Reason being: Due to the Size and Shape of the property, and Lack of Identifica-
tion. 
 
Board Member Pauta supported the motion. 
 
Chairman Watripont stated there is a motion by Secretary Nestorowicz, Supported 
by Board Member Pauta, to approve the petition as written; due to Size and Shape 
of the Lot and Not a Detriment to the Area.  He asked for Roll Call. 
 
 
 
 
Roll Call: 
A roll call was taken on the motion to approve and the motion carried (6-0). 

 

Secretary Nestorowicz   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 

Board Member Pauta   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 

Board Member Tabbi   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 

Board Member Anglin   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 

Board Member Furgal   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 

Chairman Watripont   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 
 
The Petitioner’s request has been GRANTED as written. 

 
 

11. PUBLIC HEARING    APPLICANT: Shiloh Industries, Inc /  
           J.P. Tillies LLC  

REPRESENTATIVE:   JP Tillie LLC/Timothy J. Zawodny, R.A. 
COMMON DESCRIPTION:  27101 Groesbeck Highway 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION:   13-13-478-009 (13-13-478-010) 
ZONE:     M-2 

 
VARIANCES REQUESTED: Permission to: 
Waive an additional 3,377 sq. ft. of required off-street parking in addition to the 60,336 
sq. ft. waived by the ZBA on 6/11/2003 for outdoor storage areas. 
ORDINANCES and REQUIREMENTS: 
Section 4.32 Paragraph (h) Item 23: One (1) square foot of parking area required for 
each sq. ft. of floor area for buildings in an M-2 District. 
 
This matter was rescheduled to November 18, 2015 pursuant to Applicant’s written request. 
 
 

12. PUBLIC HEARING    APPLICANT: Ground Effects 
REPRESENTATIVE:   Mr. Larry Nichols/Armstrong, Miller & Nichols 
COMMON DESCRIPTION:  No frontage/ (1990 Concept Drive) 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION:   13-19-326-022 (associated with 13-19-355-004) 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

MINUTES OF SEPTEMBER 23, 2015 

Page 14 

 

 

ZONE:     M-2 
 
VARIANCES REQUESTED:  Permission to: 
1. Allow hard surfacing in the front setback back on a parking lot with no address. 
2. Allow the maneuvering lane at 19.5’ and the parking spaces at 13.5’ as per the plan. 
3. Allow outdoor storage of 294’ x 297’ = 174,240 sq. ft. on parcel E; 75’ x 300’ = 

22,500 sq. ft. on parcel D.  
4. Continue an eight (8) foot fence around both properties as per the plans. 

Total outdoor storage 196,740 sq. ft. 
ORDINANCES and REQUIREMENTS: 
Section 17.02 Item (a): Front setback in M-2: Front setback is 25’. 
Section 4.32 (i) maneuvering & parking space size: 60 degree angle parking is 9’ x 
20’ with a 20’ maneuvering lane. 
Section 17.02 Item (s): All open storage shall be located in a designated area ap-
proved by the Planning Commission as a part of site plan approval. The area shall be 
enclosed on three (3) sides by chain link fencing with always be hard surfaced and 
screened from the public street and any residentially zoned areas. The designated 
areas shall not be located in any area required for parking space and is necessary to 
meet the minimum requirements of Section 4.32 of this ordinance. Further, the desig-
nated area may not exceed fifty (50) percent of the gross floor area of the primary 
structure on the site… Lumber, including wood pallets or other combustible material, 
shall not be stored less than twenty (20) feet from any interior lot line. An open driveway 
shall be provided that has a graded roadway, is hard surfaced and maintained from the 
street to the storage area in order to permit clear access for fire trucks at any time to the 
open storage areas. 
Section 4D.38 Height of fences: Obscuring walls and fences in non-residential zones 
shall not exceed six (6) feet in height. 
 
Chairman Watripont asked the individual at the podium to state his name and address 
for the record. 
 
Larry Nichols, with Armstrong, Miller and Nichols, appeared before the Board and stated 
joining him are John Dienst and Joel Dawson from Ground Effects, 1990 Concept Drive, 
Warren, Michigan. 
 
Chairman Watripont asked the reason for their petition. 
 
Larry Nichols stated the reason was they want to add parking spaces along the private 
road nineteen (19) additional spaces.  The parking where the open storage is, is for cars 
that go into the plant and come back out of the plant; therefore, that area secure and for 
safety’s sake and for security, they need additional parking outside of that parking lot 
that they are using for open storage.  The other variances on this, the fencing, he 
believes the eight (8) foot fences must have been there since this was built; these 
gentleman did not install the eight (8) foot fences, they were there.  The size of the 
parking space is about as large as they could accommodate there and he looked at 
some parking structures that do accommodate that size of a space, so it could be 
handled that way. 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

MINUTES OF SEPTEMBER 23, 2015 

Page 15 

 

 

 
Joel Dawson, with Ground Effects, stated he was there when the building and they took 
CFO for this property and items number 3, and 4 were pre-existing and there during the 
CFO. 
 
Chairman Watripont stated this is a public hearing, anyone wishing to speak on this 
item.  Hearing and seeing none, he turned the matter over to the Board. 
 
Board Member Furgal stated the request seems reasonable because they need the 
parking and this Parcel E with these long lines, this is where they have their outdoor 
storage and they store cars in there? 
 
Larry Nichols stated yes, they are vehicles from Chrysler.  
 
Board Member Furgal asked if they do some kind of work to these cars and then they 
go away; they come and go all the time?  
 
Larry Nichols stated they have about 450 trucks go in and out of that open storage 
space every day. 
 
Board Member Furgal stated there are no houses around there, it is all industrial cor-
rect?  She is familiar with the area; she does not live very far away. 
 
Larry Nichols stated yes. 
 
Board Member Furgal stated the maneuvering lane would only be used basically by 
their employees; no one else really has any access to this place? 
 
Larry Nichols affirmed. 
 
Board Member Furgal stated and the eight (8) foot fence is for their security; they do not 
have any razor wire or any of those things then? 
 
Larry Nichols stated no. 
 

Motion: 
Board Member Furgal made the motion to approve the petitioner’s request to: 
1. Allow hard surfacing in the front setback back on a parking lot with no address. 
2. Allow the maneuvering lane at 19.5’ and the parking spaces at 13.5’ as per the 

plan. 
3. Allow outdoor storage of 294’ x 297’ = 174,240 sq. ft. on parcel E; 75’ x 300’ = 

22,500 sq. ft. on parcel D.  
4. Continue an eight (8) foot fence around both properties as per the plans. 

Total outdoor storage 196,740 sq. ft.  With the Condition that Outside Storage 
be limited to New Vehicles only 

 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

MINUTES OF SEPTEMBER 23, 2015 

Page 16 

 

 

Reason being: Not Unreasonable, Not Self Imposed, Property is Unique; it is Not a 
Detriment, Not Personal or Economic and Necessary to continue their Business. 
 
 
Board Member Anglin supported the motion. 
 
Chairman Watripont stated there is a motion by Board Member Furgal, Supported 
by Board Member Anglin, with discussion; Secretary Nestorowicz. 
 
Secretary Nestorowicz stated he is actually very familiar with their property be-
cause he actually grew up just north of Frazho in that area, and he has no problem 
with the current use of that property and the outside storage.  His only concern was 
that he was wondering if the Board could add something on there, so, therefore, if 
the business changes or they sell or they move that there is not a blanketed huge 
outside storage back there, because he always worries that with that amount of 
outside storage…they are doing a great job using the cars for Chrysler and all of 
that sort of thing, but what if the next person that comes in there, buys the property 
from them and does junk cars or something.  So, he was just wondering, could the 
Board put a condition to either with the current owners or to…? 
 
Board Member Furgal stated they could put a condition that as long as Ground Ef-
fects is the owner on the outside storage. 
 
Secretary Nestorowicz asked if Ground Effects be okay with that kind of condition, 
as long as they are the owner. 
 
Larry Nichols stated yes; this was all preexisting, it was a parking lot prior to them 
occupying, it was already there. 
 
Secretary Nestorowicz stated a parking lot is different than outside storage, be-
cause outside storage, someone could start storing who knows what. 
 
Chairman Watripont stated he personally would like to change it to what they have 
is new vehicles in there?  
 
Larry Nichols stated brand new vehicles. 
 
Chairman Watripont stated he would like to put that condition on rather than while 
they are there, if that makes any sense. 
 
Board Member Furgal stated that makes sense too. 
 
Secretary Nestorowicz stated okay, he is fine with that. 
 
Board Member Furgal stated that their new vehicles… 
 
Chairman Watripont stated the open storage is limited to new vehicles. 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

MINUTES OF SEPTEMBER 23, 2015 

Page 17 

 

 

 
Board Member Furgal added the condition that the outside storage be limited 
to new vehicles only.  (This Condition was added to the initial motion). 
 
Chairman Watripont stated and the Supporter agrees to change it to include the 
limitation of New Vehicles? 
 
Board Member Anglin stated he changes his support to the condition of being with-
in the limitation of being New Vehicles only. 
 
Chairman Watripont stated he has a motion by Board Member Furgal, Supported 
by Board Member Anglin to grant the request as written with the Condition: that 
the Open Storage be New Vehicles only; due to the reasons that Board Member 
Furgal stated.  He asked for Roll Call. 
 
 
Roll Call: 
A roll call was taken on the motion to approve and the motion carried (6-0). 

 

Board Member Furgal   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 

Board Member Anglin   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 

Secretary Nestorowicz   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 

Board Member Pauta   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 

Board Member Tabbi   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 

Chairman Watripont   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 
 
The Petitioner’s request has been GRANTED as written, with the Condition: 
That outside Storage is limited to New Vehicles only. 

 
 

13. PUBLIC HEARING    APPLICANT:  ITC Holdings-USE- 
REPRESENTATIVE:   Mr. Gary R. Kirsh 
COMMON DESCRIPTION:  12500 Ten Mile 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION:   13-26-131-001 
ZONE:     M-2 & R-1-P 
 
VARIANCES REQUESTED: Permission to:-USE- 
1. Allow two (2) above ground storage tanks to relocated per the plan. 
2. Allow a twelve (12) foot fence around the property as per the plan. 
ORDINANCES and REQUIREMENTS: 
Section 17.02 (p): Propane tanks allowed in M-3 & M-4 with a one hundred fifty (150) 
foot setback from property lines. 
Section 4D.38 Height of fences: Fences in non-residential zones shall not exceed six 
(6) feet in height. 
 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

MINUTES OF SEPTEMBER 23, 2015 

Page 18 

 

 

Chairman Watripont stated this is the Use Variance, which would require all affirmative 
votes from all the Board Members present.  He asked the individual at the podium to 
state his name and address for the record and the reason for the petition. 
 
Gary Kirsh, 27175 Energy Way, Novi, Michigan, appeared before the Board and stated 
he is representing property address: 12500 Ten Mile Road, Warren, Michigan.  Out of 
the statement that was just made and respect to this Board, he would ask if the Board 
would kindly reschedule this hearing if possible to October, if not, then to the November 
meeting. 
 
Chairman Watripont stated the Board does have an opening on October 28th; he asked 
if there was a motion. 
 

Motion: 
Secretary Nestorowicz made the motion to reschedule this matter to October 28, 
2015, Supported by Board Member Pauta. 
 
 
Voice Vote: 
A voice vote was taken on the motion. The motion carried (6-0)  
 
This matter was rescheduled to October 28, 2015.  
 

Chairman Watripont stated the Board has rescheduled this matter to October 28th, 
there will not be a reposting; if anyone was present for this item, this is their notice, so 
they could come back to the October 28th, meeting. 
 
(Inaudible comments from audience). 
 
Chairman Watripont stated the public hearing never happened; unless they have some 
concerns and they want to address them with the Applicant out there and he is willing to 
speak, but not as part of the public hearing. 
 
Gary Kirsh stated out of respect for the residents that have showed up, he would defi-
nitely he out in the hallway for them. 
 
Chairman Watripont stated that was a very good move. 
 
 

14. PUBLIC HEARING    APPLICANT:  Warren Eastside Concrete, LLC 
REPRESENTATIVE:   Mr. Michael Solar 
COMMON DESCRIPTION:  23055 Groesbeck Highway 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION:   13-26-451-001 & 13-26-451-002 
ZONE:     M-3 
 
VARIANCES REQUESTED: Permission to: 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

MINUTES OF SEPTEMBER 23, 2015 

Page 19 

 

 

Assemble a portable concrete plant with a maximum height of 62’ 3” next to existing 
concrete plant which has a maximum height of 70’ 10”; as per the plan. 
ORDINANCES and REQUIREMENTS: 
Section 17.02 Item (d): Industrial Standards, Height of buildings: M-3 two (2) 
stories or 40 feet. 
 
Mike Solar, Plant Manager of Warren Eastside Concrete, 23055 Groesbeck Highway, 
on northwest corner of Nine Mile and Groesbeck, appeared before the Board and stated 
he thanks the Board for considering their request for a variance on this issue; the 
reason they want to add on, it is a portable Concrete Plant, their business has grown 
and they already own this plant, they stored at another one of their facilities; they would 
like to put it and use at their current location that they already do, ready mix concrete to 
help increase their production during the summer months.  This time of year, where 
their customer demand exceeds the capacity of their plant, so it would be just a sea-
sonal use.  He just mentioned it to Lynn, on his copy it says 70’ 10”, is their maximum 
height of their existing concrete plant, this one is 8’ 7” shorter and apparently a variance 
was granted for the existing height at 70’ 10” prior to them purchasing this property in 
2009, so that is all he has. 
 
Chairman Watripont stated this is a public hearing, anyone wishing to speak on this 
item?  Hearing and seeing none, he turned the matter over to the Board. 
 
Secretary Nestorowicz stated driving by this location, the Board has previously given 
the existing concrete plant seventy (70) feet, this one is actually going to be eight (8) 
feet smaller than the other one, it is an industrial area; he personally sees no issues in 
giving him an approval for the second one, so if there is no other discussion, he would 
like to make a motion. 
 

Motion: 
Secretary Nestorowicz made the motion to approve the petitioner’s request to: 
Assemble a portable concrete plant with a maximum height of 62’ 3” next to existing 
concrete plant which has a maximum height of 70’ 10”; as per the plan. 
 
Reasons Being: Due to Size and Shape of the Lot and Not a Detriment to the Area. 
 
Board Member Pauta Supported the Motion. 
 
Chairman Watripont stated he has a motion by Secretary Nestorowicz, Supported by 
Board Member Pauta, to approve the petitioner’s request as stated; due to Size and 
Shape of the Lot, and Not a Detriment to the Area.  He asked for Roll Call. 
 
Roll Call: 
A roll call was taken on the motion to approve and the motion carried (6-0). 

 

Secretary Nestorowicz    Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 

Board Member Pauta   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

MINUTES OF SEPTEMBER 23, 2015 

Page 20 

 

 

Board Member Tabbi   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 

Board Member Anglin   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 

Board Member Furgal   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 

Chairman Watripont   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 
 
The Petitioner’s request has been GRANTED as written. 

 
 

15. NEW BUSINESS 
 
Chairman Watripont stated there is an opening on the Board, if anyone knows of 
anyone interested, hopefully they could get it on City Council in three (3) weeks and 
have it filled by the October 14th meeting.  The other thing he has for New Business is 
they would usually do an election of Officers, but due to the fact that they only have six 
(6) of the Board Members and two (2) Members are brand new, he would like to hold off 
on that until the next meeting and possibly even post it on the Agenda.  That was all he 
had for new business, anyone else?  And welcome to the two (2) new Board Members. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

16. ADJOURNMENT  
 

Motion: 
Secretary Nestorowicz made the motion to adjourn the meeting; Board Member 
Anglin supported the motion. 
 
Voice Vote:  
A voice vote was taken on the motion. The motion carried (6-0). 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 8:18p.m. 

 
 
 
 
 
        Roman Nestorowicz 
        Secretary of the Board 


